MINUTES OF THE SENATE NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Carolyn McGinn at 8:30 a.m. on March 19, 2009, in Room 446-N of the Capitol.

All members were present.

Committee staff present:

Kristen Kellems, Revisor of Statutes Office Jason Thompson, Revisor of Statutes Office Corey Carnahan, Kansas Legislative Research Department Alissa Vogel, Committee Assistant

Others attending:

See attached list.

The meeting began with the approval of minutes. <u>Senator Francisco moved to approve the minutes from February 13</u>, February 26, March 5, and March 12, 2009. <u>Senator Lee seconded the motion</u>, and the motion carried.

Senator McGinn requested that <u>SB 2050 – Adjusting fees for water rights, applications for term permits</u> <u>for appropriating water</u> be passed out of Committee. <u>Senator Francisco moved to pass SB 2050 favorably</u> out of Committee. Senator Teichman seconded the motion. After discussion, the motion carried.

Senator McGinn asked the Committee if they had any interest in working <u>SB 184 – Surface owner notice</u> <u>act</u>. The Committee members responded that there was an interest, and discussion ensued. Senator Bruce stated that <u>SB 184</u>, in its current form, would rewrite many private leases and agreements and change provisions of numerous titles already filed with registers of deeds. This raises concerns regarding the constitutionality of <u>SB 184</u> in that the legislation impairs contractual agreements made between two parties and impairs an individual's property interest. He stated that the current legislation would have to be made prospectively, rather than retrospectively, leaving the issue unresolved.

Senator Bruce presented a substitute for <u>SB 184</u>. (<u>Attachment 1</u>) The proposed substitute places the burden on the mineral owner to include on the application of intent to drill, filed with the Kansas Corporation Commission (KCC), the name and address of the surface owner. The KCC would then send a letter of notification to the surface owner.

Senator Bruce answered questions from Committee members regarding <u>SB 184</u>. Bob Krehbiel stood before the Committee to assist in answering the questions.

Discussion was held on the impact <u>SB 184</u> would have on the right to access the land agreed upon in a lease. Senator Francisco stated that the language contained in <u>SB 184</u> does not prevent access to the property, and an agreement may be made in the lease that waives the right to notification. Senator Taddiken stated that it does change the conditions on which the oil and gas operator has the right to ingress.

<u>Senator Taddiken moved to amend **SB 184** by adding the language "July1, 2010" on page 4, paragraph b, section 6. He deferred to the staff from the Revisor of Statutes Office for the proper placement of the date into the language. <u>Senator Francisco seconded the motion</u>. Discussion ensued.</u>

Senator Bruce moved to make a substitute motion for the amendment, in which section 6 would be removed. Senator Teichman seconded the motion. By a hand vote, the motion carried.

Senator Taddiken moved to replace the language "48 hours" located on page 4, section 5, line 14, with "two business days." Senator Lee seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

Senator Taddiken asked for discussion to be held on language located on page 4, starting on line 7, stating that "Such agreement shall only be enforceable for one year and must be renegotiated annually." Discussion ensued.

Senator Francisco moved to amend the time requirements for notification, located on page 2, section 3, lines

CONTINUATION SHEET

Minutes of the Senate Natural Resources Committee at 8:30 a.m. on March 20, 2009, in Room 446-N of the Capitol.

10 and 38, increasing the required amount of time prior to notification to "15 business days." The motion was seconded by Senator Lee. After discussion, the motion failed.

Senator Francisco move to amend the language on page 3, line 26, from "ten days" to "five days." Senator Bruce seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

Senator Francisco informed the Committee that a surface owner's contact information can be obtained online. She also informed the Committee that there is an electronic way for oil and gas operators to receive a 20-digit number, through delivery confirmation, in which the post office can confirm that the letter of notification was sent and received.

Senator Francisco moved to amend SB 184 by adding the language "delivery confirmation" to the list of acceptable types of mail located on page 3, line 18. Senator Bruce seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

Senator Bruce moved to remove the language "Such agreement shall only be enforceable for one year and must be renegotiated annually" located on page 4, section 4, lines 7 and 8. Senator Morris seconded the motion, and the motion carried.

Senator Bruce moved to remove the language "separate and apart from an oil and gas lease" located on page 4, section 4, line 3. Senator Teichman seconded the motion. After discussion, the motion carried.

Senator Bruce asked for clarification on what is meant by well-site preparation. Senator Lee asked for more information on what is involved in geophysical operations to determine the potential for oil and gas operations. Bob Krehbiel and Terry Holdren stood before the Committee and answered questions regarding the oil and gas operations.

Senator Lee moved to remove the language contained in lines 21 through 22 located on page 2, section 3. Senator Teichman seconded the motion. After discussion, the motion carried.

Senator Abrams asked whether maintenance was implied in lines 23 through 26 located on page 2, section 3. Terry Holdren responded that maintenance was not implied, but rather the language refers to the reworking of any facility, structure or operation which substantially disturbs the surface or substantially expands the use of the surface from conditions existing prior to such operation. Senator Abrams requested new language that would clarify lines 23 through 26, so that when oil and gas operators stay on existing roads and sites, then notification to the surface owner would not be necessary.

Senator Bruce brought to the attention of the Committee an issue of whether surface owners should be required to give notification to the mineral rights owner prior to an activity that is disruptive to the mineral owner's estate.

Discussion on **SB 184** will continue at the next meeting.

The next meeting is scheduled for March 20, 2009.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:30 a.m.